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Mrs. Robert Egkle

STREET AND NUMBER:

2505 Macon Road
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Hilton, originally, was a Zéoom clapboard house, built in 1838
by Dr. Lovick Plerce, and was bought by Wil;;am“W§§qr§Wgarrgrd

Mr. Garrard is reported to have gone to Italy between 1850-1855
where he saw en Italian villa he admired and wanted copied. He
had marble mantles, statues and stalned glass sent to Amerlca,
end incorporated Dr. Plerce's farmhouse into an Itallen villa,
less expensively than building a2 new house. The front door of
Dr. Pierce's house became Mr. Gayrard's back door, for the two
story section with its projectlng central bay and bay winabws at
eech end were 2dded in 1855 with the two smaller projecting
rooms (milk and bath) =2d4ded to the backs.

lir. Garrard's slaves lived and cooked in s brick kitchen he
built in the back yard eway from the house, The food was
orougnt across to the butler's pantry before qerving the family
in the large dining room. d

A servant's house, barn, privy, and smoke house were also in the
back yard, but are noW¥ gone,

Mrs. A. H. Bickerstaff restored the house inqlgjé ~ascertaining
from the foundation that the Garrard section was stuccoed in
block design like Italian houses and palnted pink. When the
Bickerstaff's bought the house it was clapboarded although no
date can be established when that took pI§6€TPﬁ*~L‘

Today the house 1s white frame with the green original shutters.
Plaster cornices, medallions, as well as its large ceillings and
rooms add to the comfort and charm of the house.

The original water system can still be found on each side of
the house. Gutters from the £oof carried the water to a very
deep filter and drained into cisterns sbout 12 feet deep.

An accompanying fl T 2 snows the dimensions of the rooms.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Events, Etc.)

When Columbus was founded in 1828 one of its early citizens,
Seaborn Jones, secured deeds to large blocks of land, one of
which he so0ld in 1838 to Dr. Lovick Pierce of South Carolina.

Dr. Plerce, who was educated in medicine in Philadelphia, be-
came & Methodist minister and Bishop. In 1843 his home was
completed as a simple, but comfortable four room house about
three miles from the tiny trading post on the road to lacon,
Georgla. An avenue of cedar trees off Macon Road in front of
the Christian Church led up to the front of his house. With
the incorporation of its extensive grounds, Dr. Pierce's home
comprised a city block. "

Dr. Pierce remained in Columbus until 1859, but lived in the
house only until 1855 when William Waters Garrard of Savannah
bought the house. INMr. Garrard's wife, Mary Urquhart of {
Scottish descent, was the sister of Dr. John A. Urquhart, one
of Columbus' early citizens who moved from Augusta to Columbus
in 1833. Dr. Urquhart had moved to the city to help minister
to the cholera victims. He became a great friend of Chilly
McIntosh, the famous Chieftan whose father had been murdered.
McIntosh, half Indian and half Scottish, stood with Urquhart,

a full Scotsman, at the Battle of Hitchity in 1836. The battle
1s commemorated by a marker on Lumpkin Road at Fort Benning,
Georgia., ‘ _

John Urquhart was born in Augusta, the eldest son of David
Urquhart of Cromarty, Scotland, and the lovely Catherlne
MacGehee of Prince Edward County, Virginia. When David
Urquhart and his wife moved to Charleston in 1796, they owned
a plantation on the Savannah River they called "Hilton", for
the homes of the Urquharts in Cromarty. Of their ten children,
five made Columbus thelr home before 1850, and one christened
his home "Hilton."

Consequently, William Garrard's wife, Mary, lived her married
life in the home where she also spent her girlhood.

Mr. Garrard, who was in the cotton business, had also lived in
a home called "Hilton:" his was located on the Savannah Rlver

at Hilton Head Island - so he and his wife both had ties

(continued)
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
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in the National Register and certify that it has been
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level of significance of this nomination is:

State Local
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National

Narme Wm %M QM
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Date
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HILTON - Statement of Significance - page 2

with homes called "Hilton" before the home they shared in Columbus.
The Garrard family lived in the house until 1887, when the John
Flournoy Realty Company bought the house. The house changed hands
many times, and was rented to clty families in the summer so that
they could get away to a cool spot.

A. Howard Bickerstaff bought the house in 1919, for he had grown
to love it during his summer visits. His three children, A.
Howard Bickerstaff, Jr., Mary Preer Blckerstsff (now Mrs, Brennan
Dobbs of Atlanta, and Nora Walton Bickerstaff (now Mrs. Robert
Eakle) grew up in the house. Mrs. Eakle was born and later
married at Hilton.

Mrs. Eakle, her husband and two children, Nora and Grandin, are
the present occupants. All talented musiclans, "Hilton" is the
scene of frequent concerts and Orpheus Club meetings.

"Hilton" has a speclal place in history, for some of the last
shots of the War Between the States were fired from the front
porch in April, 1865, at General Wilson's Army. The soldiers had
tortured Mr. Garrard's slaves to show them where the family silver
was buried, but the master had secretly moved it to another hid-
ing place. Fortunately, the Northern ralders dld not harm "Hilton"
before leaving it to join General Sherman.,

One of the house's most recent use was 1n 1967 when John Wayne
made the movie "The Green Berets" at Fort Bennlng, Georgia.
"Hilton" was used extenslvely throughout the movie.

A prominent resildental section of Columbus takes it name from

this "Great House."
3%

Deeds Recorded:

B 247 State of Georgla to Walter H. Weems, 1837 (State
Archives)
walter H., Weems to Lovic Plerce, 6 acres, 1840, $400.
Soutggast corner of Lot 76 on which "Hilton" was bullt
in 18480,

F 43 Lovic Pierce to Raphael Moses, Lot 93 (minus parts, etc)
plus 6 acres bought from Walter H. Weems.

B 273 Seaborn Jones to Lovic Pearce 1838 pt. lot 93 Coweta
Reserve - north of road 1ead1ng from Columbus to Fitts
¥ills, 50 acres mora or less with spurtenances, $1300.

F 43 Lovic Pierce to Raphael Moqes, executor of Deborsah
Moses, lot 93 (minuq parts sold to Aaron Fergusson 1852
and Daniel Harris) %2400,

(continued...)

GP O 901.082



Form 10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE GEORGIA

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES [couNTY

Muscogee
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM g
FOR NPS USE ONLY
(Continuation Sheet) ENTRY NUMBER S =

JAN 2 01972

(Number all entries)

HILTON - Statement of Significance - page 3

F 220 Raphael Moses, executor of Deborah Moses to Henry Ep-
ping, 25 acres pt lot CR $3, 1852. %3500,

F 290 Henry Epping to Reuben Shorter, 1852, 25 acres pt. lot
CR 93 plus 6 acres. %4,000,

G 439 Reuben Shorter to Wm. W. Garrard 1855, 22 acres pt. lot
93 (lately residence of Epping, Moses, and Dr, Lovick
Pierce),

Frances Isabelle Gerrard, wife of Wm, W. Gerrard, Sr. to

Wm. W. Garrard, Jr. and L. F. Garrard, 1879.

BB 575 L. P. and Wm, W. Gerrard, Jr. to Muscogee Real Estate
Co. 1887, 22 acres, pt lot 93 CR plus 6 acres lot 76,
$2L,000,

23=-135 Muscogee Real Estate Co. to Flournoy Real Estate Co.
1887
25-205 Flournoy Real Estate Co. to Annie K. Small, 1917, 5

acres including Mansion House, $8,500. (Copied from deed|

book). .
28-460 A. K. Small to Nors W. Bickerstaff, 1919, 5 acres, pt
lot 93 CR plus 6 acres of lot 76, $20,000,

Propggty now owned by Noréfw.fBlckerstaff's children
(1916). ’ '

9 3 3

As stated, one of the most prominent residental sections of
Columbus has taken its name from thils house. The house and
grounds are located on a major United States highway (U.S. 80).
Because of the current land value, some partitlion of this
property will most probably be proposed shortly. It 1is, there-
fore, essential that this house be afforded protection 1ln the
National Reglster as soon as possible. Hilton 1s of extreme 1im-
portance to the community from both a historic and a cultural
standpoint.

According to 2 recently passed Columbus zoning ordlnance, any
house accepted by the National Register will be gliven a "Land-
mark Status®" locally. This means that all alterations, im-
provements, partial demolitions, et cetra, will be subject to
review by the local Board of Historic and Architectural Review,
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